
 

 

NORTH LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCIL 
 

 
 

27 March 2024 
 
 
 
 

Chairman:  Councillor Neil Poole 
 

Venue:  Conference Room, 
Church Square House 

 
Time:  2.00 pm E-Mail Address:  

dean.gillon@northlincs.gov.uk 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
  
1.   Substitutions (if any)   

  
2.   Declarations of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and Personal or Personal 

and Prejudicial Interests.   
  

3.   To take the minutes of the meeting of the Standards Committee held on 9 
November 2023 as a correct record and authorise the chairman to sign.  
(Pages 1 - 4) 
  

4.   Humberside Police's Single Point of Contact - presentation and discussion 
with T/Detective Chief Inspector Robinson   
  

5.   Media Relation and Publicity Management - discussions with the Head of 
Corporate Marketing  (Pages 5 - 14) 
  

6.   Complaints Schedule - Update.  (Pages 15 - 18) 
  

7.   Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent by reason of special 
circumstances which must be specified.   
  

Note: Reports are by the Director: Outcomes unless otherwise 
stated.  
 

 

 
 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



 

15 

NORTH LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCIL 
 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 

9 November 2023 
 

PRESENT: -   
 
Cllr M Ali, C O'Sullivan, R Ogg, C Ross, S Swift and D Wells 
 
Mr A Forbes, Dr W Harvie, and Mr R Johnson (Independent Persons) 
  
 
The meeting was held at the Conference Room, Church Square House. 
 
 
The Director: Outcomes informed the Committee that it would be necessary to elect a 
Chairman for the meeting. 
 
 
Moved by Councillor C Ross and seconded by Councillor D Wells - 
  
That Councillor R Ogg be elected as Chairman  
  

Motion Carried 
  
At this point in the meeting Councillor Ogg took the chair, and welcomed everyone. 
 
  
484 SUBSTITUTIONS (IF ANY) 

  
There were no substitutes. 
  

485 DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS AND 
PERSONAL OR PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS. 
  
There were no declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests or personal or 
personal and prejudicial interests. 
  

486 TO TAKE THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE STANDARDS 
COMMITTEE HELD ON 29 JUNE 2023 AS A CORRECT RECORD AND 
AUTHORISE THE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN. 
  
Resolved – That the minutes of the meeting of this committee held on 29 
June 2023, having been printed and circulated amongst the members, be 
taken as read and correctly recorded and be signed by the chairman. 
  

487 REVIEW OF PROTOCOL ON MEMBER AND OFFICER RELATIONS 
  
The Director: Outcomes submitted a report which explained that Council, at 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
9 November 2023 

 

its meeting on 5 October 2023 (minute 2927 refers), approved a review of the 
Member Officer Protocol, which complied with good practice to regularly 
review the codes and protocols contained within the council’s Constitution. In 
accordance with the requirements of Article 15 (15.01) of the Constitution, 
this review was to be carried out through the council’s Standards Committee 
and a recommended revised draft protocol be reported to the December 
meeting of the Council for consideration and approval. 
  
A benchmarking exercise had been completed, alongside consideration of 
the associated content of the council’s Code of Conduct for Members, Code 
of Conduct for Officers and the council’s Media Relations and Publicity 
Management Policy. The council’s current ‘Protocol on Member/Officer 
Relations’ and a draft revised protocol were attached as appendices for the 
committee’s consideration. 
  
Members discussed the draft revised protocol, asking questions about the 
proposed changes, and the route for members to raise queries with the 
relevant Director.  The Head of Democracy answered accordingly. 
  
Resolved – (a) That the revised draft ‘Protocol on Member/Officer Relations’ 
Relations’ (Part E Code 3 of the council’s Constitution) be supported, and it 
be recommended to Council that it be approved and adopted; and (b) that the 
Head of Marketing be invited to the next scheduled meeting of the Standards 
Committee to discuss the council’s Media Relations and Publicity 
Management Policy. 
  
  
  

488 RENEWAL OF DISPENSATION - STEEL INDUSTRY 
  
The Director: Outcomes submitted a report requesting that the Standards 
Committee consider renewing the dispensation granted to all elected 
members on 6 November 2015, and renewed each subsequent year, 
concerning motions related to British Steel (formerly Tata Steel). 
  
The Monitoring Officer explained that this dispensation had been granted in 
November 2015, and renewed annually, in order to allow members to 
participate in any motion or discussion concerning British Steel and the steel 
industry.  Further details, including the terms of the dispensation, were set out 
in the report. 
  
As the dispensation was due to expire on 9 November 2023 the committee 
was asked to consider extending the dispensation for a further twelve 
months, taking into account the continued interest in the steel industry, and 
the likelihood that the council would wish to discuss related issues. 
  
Resolved – That pursuant to section 33 (2) (c) of the Localism Act 2011, the 
dispensation granted by the committee on 6 November 2015, and 
subsequently renewed annually, be renewed for a further twelve month 
period. 

Page 2



STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
9 November 2023 

 

  
  

489 NLC / HUMBERSIDE POLICE PROTOCOL - VERBAL UPDATE 
  
The Monitoring Officer explained that steps previously agreed by the 
Standards Committee (minute 459 refers) to enable North Lincolnshire 
Councillors and Group Office staff to report serious concerns to the police 
had been implemented. 
  
The Monitoring Officer also provided an update regarding correspondence 
with Humberside Police’s Single Point of Contact, T/Detective Inspector 
Robinson.  T/Detective Inspector Robinson had kindly offered to provide 
further training to members on the legislation related to online abuse and 
freedom of speech. 
  
Resolved – (a) That the situation be noted; and (b) that T/Detective Inspector 
Robinson be invited to the Standards Committee’s next meeting to discuss 
further and to answer questions from members. 
  

490 STANDARDS ARRANGEMENTS AND CODE OF CONDUCT - ONLINE 
TRAINING PACKAGE 
  
The Monitoring Officer provided a demonstration of an online training 
package that had been developed to distribute to all Town and Parish 
Councils in North Lincolnshire.  This had been developed as a general 
overview of the standards regime, and was produced to accompany the 
annual, ‘in-person’ and online training sessions provided by the Monitoring 
Officer, and the distribution of the recordings of these sessions.  Following a 
short period of testing, it was intended to send this material to all councils 
across North Lincolnshire, to enable councillors to access training at a time to 
suit them. 
  
The Standards Committee discussed the training package, querying whether 
the names of participants would be recorded, whether a suitable certificate 
could be provided, and how this might affect the number and nature of future 
complaints.  The Monitoring Officer and the Head of Democracy responded 
fully. 
  
Resolved – That, following a period of testing and the implementation of the 
above measures, that the training package be circulated to the clerks of each 
Town and Parish Council in North Lincolnshire, accompanied by other 
training materials. 
  
  
  

491 COMPLAINTS SCHEDULE - UPDATE. 
  
The Director: Governance & Communities submitted a report updating the 
Standards Committee on progress made on all outstanding complaints and 
investigations, and any relevant issues related to the Complaints Schedule. 

Page 3



STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
9 November 2023 

 

  
Resolved – That the schedule be noted. 
  

492 ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE URGENT BY 
REASON OF SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES WHICH MUST BE SPECIFIED. 
  
There were no urgent or additional items for consideration at the meeting. 
  
The Chairman thanked the Monitoring Officer for his help and support over 
the years, and wished him well in his new role at a neighbouring local 
authority.  In return, the monitoring Officer also thanked the members of the 
Standards Committee, past and previous, and the three Independent Persons 
for their contribution, noting that the standards regime in North Lincolnshire 
was strong, thanks to the impartiality and collective efforts of all. 
 

 
 

Page 4



SAFE WELL PROSPEROUS CONNECTED 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Media Relations and Publicity Management 

Approved February 2023 

  

  

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



SAFE  WELL  PROSPEROUS  CONNECTED 

 

1 
  

1.0 Publicity and Media Relations Policy 
 

1.1 Purpose 

To establish the governance arrangements and responsibilities upon officers and 

members of North Lincolnshire Council (‘the council’) in relation to: 

• Publicity and the use of resources to that end, 

• The management of the professional relationships, working practices and 

operational activity between the council and media organisations. 

The policy details practices regarding publicity, recognises specifically the run-up to 

elections, details the restrictions which affect the use of council resources and codifies 

the formal procedure for dealing with complaints. 

The policy applies to all officers and elected members when delivering any 

communication in an official council capacity, in whatever form, addressed to the public 

at large or to a section of the public. This includes when representing the Council on 

outside bodies, partnership organisations and content shared on Council social media. 

1.2 Rationale  

Ensuring a consistent approach is taken enables the delivery of effective, efficient, and 

legal publicity. Good publicity plays a crucial role in ensuring existing and potential 

residents, partners, customers, visitors, and stakeholders are well-informed about the 

council and its products and services. 

Good publicity also drives engagement, ensuring the council more-effectively involves 

residents in local decision-making. This, in turn, means public services are shaped 

appropriately and the council is better enabled to achieve the Council Plan. 

A professional marketing and communications function is an essential part of delivering 

this and recognises good communication, alongside policy, regulation, taxation, and 

spending, as one of the five main levers of local government. 

The council has vast, and growing, reach. The many interconnected professional 

relationships between officers, members, partners, and residents are extended further 

by the various mechanisms, channels and platforms available to share information and 

receive feedback. 

The council recognises the importance of the media’s role in assisting to communicate 

with communities and is committed to developing and maintaining positive and 

productive working relationships with the media locally, regionally and nationally.  

Media organisations and their representatives are inclusive of broadcasters (television, 

radio, podcast), printed media (newspaper, magazine, specialist publications) and 

digital publishers (websites, blogs and social media).  

When speaking to the media on behalf of the council, official spokespeople, such as 

members and officers, must reflect the council’s position in relation to all issues. 

Good publicity is guided by the following principles:  

• Protect the reputation of, and build further trust and confidence in, the council. 

• Enhance the relationship between the council and communities of North 

Lincolnshire. 

• Enable changing behaviours for the benefit of residents. 

• Explain, and support the delivery of, council policies and programmes. 

• Inform, educate, promote, motivate, and reassure. 

Page 6



SAFE  WELL  PROSPEROUS  CONNECTED 

 

2 
  

2.0 Legal and Policy Context  
 

2.1 Local Government Act 

Specific legislation exists governing the publicity activities of local authorities through 

the Local Government Act 1986 (the Act). Local authorities are required by Section 4(1) 

of the Act to have regard to the contents of the Code of Recommended Practice on 

Local Authority Publicity (Publicity Code).  

The Act and the Publicity Code apply to officers and members and consideration should 

be given to both at all times in making any decisions in relation to publicity. 

Publicity is defined by the Act as “any communication, in whatever form, addressed to 

the public at large or to a section of the public”. 

Part II of the Act states: “A local council shall not publish, or arrange for the publication 

of, any material which, in whole or in part, appears to be designed to affect public 

support for a political party.”  

The Code references a set of principles by which publicity by local authorities should: 

• be lawful. 

• be cost effective. 

• be objective. 

• be even-handed. 

• be appropriate. 

• have regard to equality and diversity. 

• be issued with care during periods of heightened sensitivity. 

The legislative basis referenced above are codified into the Council’s Constitution, 

which at paragraph E3.01 provides that members shall “not use council resources for 

political business.” 

2.2 Members’ Code of Conduct 

Additionally, North Lincolnshire Council’s Members’ Code of Conduct (Members’ Code) 

recognises the Publicity Code and thus the Act. 

The Members’ Code was adopted by the council as required by Section 27 of the 

Localism Act 2011. Section 3.8 states: “You must only use, or authorise the use of, the 

council’s resources for proper purposes (non-political with regard being had to any 

applicable Local Council Code of Publicity) and in accordance with the council’s 

procedural and policy requirements.” 

2.3 Additional Legislation & Guidance 

This knowledge should be supplemented by an awareness of The Contempt of Court 

Act (1981) and The Defamation Act (1996). 

An understanding of the Data Protection Act (2018), the Equality Act (2010), the 

Freedom of Information Act (2000) and the Human Rights Act (1998) is assistive. 

Alongside a comprehension of the above mentioned legislative and constitutional 

governance arrangements, anyone engaged in the delivery of publicity in whatever 

form should have a working knowledge and understanding of the Independent Press 

Standards Organisation’s Editors’ Code of Practice. 

 

Page 7



SAFE  WELL  PROSPEROUS  CONNECTED 

 

3 
  

3.0 Operational Activity 

 

3.1 Press releases 

These are used to publicise reports, decisions, policies, events, and activities as well 

as launch new initiatives, products or services and should include appropriate 

representation from elected members and officers involved in the matter. 

They can also be used to raise awareness of particular issues, highlight performance, 

recognise civic achievements or encourage residents to engage in specific matters. 

The marketing and communications team holds a central media diary to co-ordinate 

announcements to ensure the most-effective publicity is achieved. 

Comments are to be attributed to: 

• The mayor or nominated representative relating to civic and ceremonial 

matters. 

• The leader on policy matters and major and strategic issues and by their 

discretion any others as the senior representative of the council. 

• Cabinet members or lead members on corresponding portfolio matters. 

• Other elected representatives as appropriate (this should include those 

involved in the development of the matters which are being publicised).  

On occasions, comment may be requested by the marketing and communications team 

from ward members, political group leaders and independent councillors as 

appropriate. 

News releases and statements related to council decisions will be drafted in advance 

of the publication of the decision and not released before the decision has been 

published (this can be synchronised).  

News releases will be posted on the council website and shared when appropriate 

across other relevant channels.  

3.2 Media briefings and press conferences 

These can be used to announce major initiatives, policies or projects and should 

include appropriate representation from elected members and officers involved in the 

matter. 

This may include the mayor, leader, cabinet member, lead members and corporately 

the chief executive or other representative from the senior leadership team. 

On occasion, staff members with specific and detailed insight may be used with 

agreement from the marketing and communications team and relevant senior officers. 

3.3 Photocalls 

The marketing and communications team will arrange all photocalls in conjunction with 

relevant officers and members. 

Invites will be issued as below: 

• The mayor or nominated representative relating to civic and ceremonial 

matters. 

• The leader on policy matters and major and strategic issues and by their 

discretion any others as the senior representative of the council. 

• Cabinet members or lead members on corresponding portfolio matters. 

Page 8



SAFE  WELL  PROSPEROUS  CONNECTED 

 

4 
  

• Other elected representatives as appropriate (this should include those 

involved in the development of the matters which are being publicised). 

• Officers, managers and directors from relevant teams can also be invited. 

When a photocall is organised on behalf of an associated partnerships, invites will be 

extended to the elected members and/or officers who serve on these bodies. 

Where possible and when appropriate Members of Parliament whose constituencies 

sit within the boundary of the council can be invited to attend. This includes when the 

matter relates to central Government policy and/or funding and/or if the patronage of 

the MP is considered to enhance regional or national promotion of the matter.  

3.4 Events 

All civic and ceremonial events are led by the mayor’s office and the mayor takes the 

lead role in officiating over the event.  

If the mayor is not available officiating over the event will fall to the deputy mayor in the 

first instance, then to the council leader, then cabinet member, then lead member, 

followed by officers in seniority.  

 At times, the council leads the management of events which are not civic nor 

ceremonial. Invites to attend such events will be issued as below: 

• The mayor 

• The leader of the council as the senior representative of the council. 

• Cabinet members or lead members on corresponding portfolio matters. 

• Other elected representatives as appropriate (this should include those 

involved in the development of the matters which are being publicised). 

Invites to and attendance at events are separate and distinct matters to press releases, 

media briefings and photocalls. 

Where possible and when appropriate Members of Parliament whose constituencies 

sit within the boundary of the council can be invited to attend. This includes when the 

matter relates to central Government policy and/or funding and/or if the patronage of 

the MP is considered to enhance regional or national promotion of the matter.  

3.5 Third party press releases, media briefings, photocalls and events 

Occasionally, officers and members may be invited to contribute to or attend any of the 

above listed activities led by other organisations, this could be private businesses, 

community organisations or volunteer groups for example. 

Any such matters directed to officers where publicity is likely to be generated must be 

managed in conjunction with the marketing and communications team.  

3.6 Photography 

The marketing and communications team provide photographic support. 

Copyright for photographs taken by the marketing and communications team rests with 

the council.  

When external photographers are commissioned, copyright stays with the 

photographer; however, the council will ensure it has the freedom to use the images 

as required. 

Photography used to highlight sensitive or controversial issues must have the explicit 

permission of those featured before use. 

Page 9



SAFE  WELL  PROSPEROUS  CONNECTED 

 

5 
  

Participants in council photocalls can be asked to remove any items they display such 

as emblems and badges that are deemed political or might otherwise express an 

opinion that could compromise the political neutrality requirements on all publicity. 

3.7 Notifications to Ward Members 

New developments and investments in specific wards will be notified to relevant ward 

members from the functional areas responsible for delivery through existing briefing 

mechanisms. 

3.8 Media enquiries  

The council’s marketing and communications team is the single point of contact 

between the council and the media for both proactive and reactive issues. It is available 

as required 24-hours a day, seven days a week,   

An open and honest approach must be taken, considering reputational issues, legal, 

privacy and/or commercial considerations. Responses will be provided in a timely 

fashion which is presented in a clear, simple, and user-friendly way.  

While the team has extensive media contacts and is generally the first port of call for 

the media, officers and councillors may on occasion directly receive enquiries.  

• Officers who are contacted by any media organisation must direct the query to 

the marketing and communications team. 

• Officers who are contacted by any partner organisations to be involved in any 

publicity must direct the query to the marketing and communications team. 

• Elected members approached by the media can liaise directly – the marketing 

and communications team can be contacted for advice, support, and guidance 

on how best to respond. 

Media statements and responses will generally be attributed to: 

• The mayor or nominated representative relating to civic and ceremonial 

matters  

• The leader on policy matters and major and strategic issues and by their 

discretion any others as the senior representative of the council 

• Cabinet members or lead members on corresponding portfolio matters. 

With the approval of the marketing and communications team, statements may 

exceptionally be attributed to council “spokesperson”, “spokesman” or “spokeswoman”. 

Media enquiries deemed to be political will be referred to the relevant political group 

offices. 

Off the record briefings must not take place.  

3.9 Potential media issues  

If officers are aware of any issues which have the potential to become a media story, 

they should notify the marketing and communications team as soon as possible, even 

if out-of-hours. 

If there is any doubt about whether something may or may not be a potential media 

issue, the head of corporate marketing should be contacted. 

3.10 Schools  

Schools and academy trusts manage their own marketing and communications. The 

central function of the council is available for support, information, advice, and guidance 

should it be required by school and academy leaders.  

Page 10



SAFE  WELL  PROSPEROUS  CONNECTED 

 

6 
  

3.11 Filming 

Requests must be directed to the marketing and communications team for 

consideration. 

3.12 Media monitoring  

The marketing and communications team monitors media coverage relating to the 

council and can provide support and advice on how to respond to any inaccuracies in 

the reported information.  

The marketing and communications team manages the council’s licence with the 

Newspaper Licensing Agency (NLA) and holds electronic copies of press clippings of 

articles related to the Council. Under the terms of the NLA licence, no other copies of 

press articles can be produced.  

3.13 Ward communications – including members’ use of council letterheads 

Ward members have a key role in communicating with their constituents but at all times 

the council is prohibited from publishing anything which appears to be designed to 

affect public support for a political party. 

The restrictions are applicable in relation to the use of pre-printed group letters (and 

associated staffing, stationery, and postage costs) for external written correspondence. 

It is permissible for ward members to use the council’s pre-printed group letterhead 

paper when corresponding with ward constituents on ward related matters. Examples 

include: 

• Sending welcome letters to new ward constituents that are limited to information 
about the ward member(s), council services and how to get in touch  

• Sending letters and newsletters to ward constituents on council-related matters or 
issues that the ward member is dealing with and are factual and informative about 
the current situation 

• Sending letters to ward constituents with a view to establishing ward surgeries to 
discuss ward and council service-related matters. 

 
Care must be taken to ensure these do not appear to be designed to affect public 
support for a political party. 

 
Such correspondence should preferably be signed by the member in their capacity as 

ward member for their respective ward. Any and all political content must be avoided, 

they should bear no political party insignia nor logos and be written in standard, black 

typeface. 

If members wish to make political statements or refer to political parties or their views, 

council pre-printed letterhead paper must not be used. 

To do so may lead to the perception that the council’s resources are being used for 

political purposes contrary to the Act, the Publicity Code, the Council’s Constitution, 

Members’ Code of Conduct, and this Policy. 

If members are in any doubt as to whether proposed content or format of ward letters 

and newsletters may infringe any of this guidance, advice from the marketing and 

communications team should be sought before sending anything. 

  

Page 11



SAFE  WELL  PROSPEROUS  CONNECTED 

 

7 
  

4.0 Publicity ahead of elections  
 

4.1 The Pre-election Period 

At all times, the council is prohibited from publishing anything which appears to be 

designed to affect public support for a political party.  

The run-up to an election, known as the Pre-election Period and formerly referred to 

as ‘purdah’ is considered to be a period of heightened sensitivity. Particular regard 

should be had to the legislation and guidance governing publicity to ensure that any 

resources of the council are not being used inappropriately. 

The relevant paragraphs of the Publicity Code are as follows:   

33. Local authorities should pay particular regard to the legislation governing publicity 

during the period of heightened sensitivity before elections and referendums – see 

paragraphs 7 to 9 of this code. It may be necessary to suspend the hosting of material 

produced by third parties, or to close public forums during this period to avoid breaching 

any legal restrictions. 

34. During the period between the notice of an election and the election itself, local 

authorities should not publish any publicity on controversial issues or report views or 

proposals in such a way that identifies them with any individual members or groups of 

members. Publicity relating to individuals involved directly in the election should not be 

published by local authorities during this period unless expressly authorised by or under 

statute. It is permissible for local authorities to publish factual information which 

identifies the names, wards and parties of candidates at elections. 

35. In general, local authorities should not issue any publicity which seeks to influence 

voters. However, this general principle is subject to any statutory provision which 

authorises expenditure being incurred on the publication of material designed to 

influence the public as to whether to support or oppose a question put at a referendum. 

It is acceptable to publish material relating to the subject matter of a referendum, for 

example to correct any factual inaccuracies which have appeared in publicity produced 

by third parties, so long as this is even-handed and objective and does not support or 

oppose any of the options which are the subject of the vote. 

The Pre-election Period is from the Notice of Election to the close of the polls at 10pm 

on polling day. 

The purpose of the restrictions is not to prevent the Council carrying out its normal 

business but to prevent business conducted during the period being used or having the 

potential to be perceived as being used to secure electoral advantage or influence 

voters. 

The legislation is clear that publicity during this period must not promote, or cannot be 

perceived to promote, a particular candidate or party or to otherwise influence voters. 

To avoid any potential misinterpretation, members who are candidates will not be 

permitted to issue mass ward/street letters and ward newsletters during the Pre-

election Period. They can respond to individual constituency casework queries though 

in all cases, members should seek advice from the marketing and communications 

team before sending anything in the Pre-election Period. 

The council balances the strict guidelines alongside its responsibilities to take 

appropriate steps to encourage the participation of electors in the election. 

Any public awareness activity must be designed in such a way as to maximise the 

impact ahead of the registration deadline to ensure everyone who wants to vote has 

the information, they need to be able to do so and can vote using their preferred 

method. 

Page 12



SAFE  WELL  PROSPEROUS  CONNECTED 

 

8 
  

5.0 Complaints 
 

5.1 How to make a complaint  

Any individual (officer, member, or resident) can complain about perceived breaches. 

Where considered appropriate and proportionate to do so, the council aims to resolve 

complaints at the point of service delivery and as quickly as possible. 

The Deputy Chief executive is the responsible director for complaints which should be, 

in the first instance, directed by email customerexperienceteam@northlincs.gov.uk 

Endeavours to resolve such complaints informally can be made with all parties. 

When the alleged breach is by a member and either matters cannot be resolved 

informally or it is considered more appropriate and proportionate that a formal 

complaint be instigated, this shall be conducted in accordance with the council’s 

Standards Arrangements. A recommendation for this can be made following the initial 

complaints triaging. 

When the alleged breach is by an officer and either matters cannot be resolved 

informally or it is considered more appropriate and proportionate that a formal 

complaint be instigated, this shall be conducted in accordance with the council’s 

disciplinary policy. A recommendation for this can be made following the initial 

complaints triaging. 

6.0  Officers in politically sensitive roles 
 

Additional awareness should be given by those who occupy posts considered politically 

restricted under Part 1 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989. The rules are 

designed to ensure the political impartiality of local government staff who hold posts 

involving duties of a politically sensitive nature.  

Further guidance is included in the Local Government Officers (Political Restrictions) 

Regulations 1990 (the Regulations). These prohibit post holders from having any active 

political role either in or outside the workplace, including standing as a candidate for 

publicly elected office, acting as an election agent or sub-agent for any candidate for 

election, holding office in a political party and canvassing at any elections.  

The Regulations include the prohibition of speaking “to the public at large or to a section 

of the public with the apparent intention of affecting public support for a political party.”  

A breach of the Regulations may also be considered a breach of the Publicity Code 

and may result in disciplinary action in line with the Council’s disciplinary policy. 

Page 13

mailto:customerexperienceteam@northlincs.gov.uk
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1989/42/part/I
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/1990/851/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/1990/851/made


This page is intentionally left blank



Democratic Services/Support Services/Regulatory/Committees/Standards/Complaints Schedule (2022-23) 
 
 

Complaint Complainant Complaint against Received Assessed Outcome 
SC/22/01 Member of North 

Lincolnshire Council 
Five Members of North 
Lincolnshire Council 

13 January 2022 16 March 2022 None 

SC/22/02 Member of the public Member of Goxhill Parish 
Council 

18 January 2022 16 March 2022 None 

SC/22/03 Member of North 
Lincolnshire Council 

Member of North 
Lincolnshire Council 

19 January 2022 16 March 2022 None 

SC/22/04 Member of North 
Lincolnshire Council 

Member of North 
Lincolnshire Council 

19 January 2022 16 March 2022 None 

SC/22/05 Member of the public Member of Worlaby Parish 
Council 

2 February 2022 16 March 2022 None 

SC/22/06 Officer of Brigg Town 
Council 

Member of Brigg Town 
Council 

23 March 2022 20 April 2022 Recommendation 
of mediation 

SC/22/07 Member of Owston 
Ferry Parish Council 

Member of Owston Ferry 
Parish Council 

4 April 2022 27 April 2022 None 

SC/22/08 Member of Owston 
Ferry Parish Council 

Member of Owston Ferry 
Parish Council 

20 April 20 May 2022 None 

SC/22/09 Monitoring Officer Member of Goxhill Parish 
Council 

20 May 2022          - Withdrawn 

SC/22/10 Member of North 
Lincolnshire Council 

Member of Epworth Town 
Council 
 

25 May 2022 14 July 2022 None 

SC/22/11 Member of the public Six Members of South 
Ferriby Parish Council 

6 June 2022 8 August 2022 None 

SC/22/12 Member of the public Member of Crowle Town 
Council 

30 June 2022 14 July 2022 None 

SC/22/13 Member of the public Member of Epworth Town 
Council 

8 September 2022 12 December 2022 Investigation 
ongoing 

SC/22/14 Member of the public Member of North 
Lincolnshire Council 

13 September 2022 25 October 2022 None 

SC/22/15 Member of the public Member of North 
Lincolnshire Council 

20 September 2022 25 October 2022 None 

SC/22/16 Member of the public Member of Epworth Town 
Council 

23 September 2022 12 December 2022 Investigation 
ongoing 

P
age 15

A
genda Item

 6



Democratic Services/Support Services/Regulatory/Committees/Standards/Complaints Schedule (2022-23) 
 
 

SC/22/17 Member of the public Member of Barnetby Parish 
Council 

29 September 2022 25 October 2022 None 

SC/22/18 Member of the public Member of Barnetby Parish 
Council 

3 October 2022 25 October 2022 None 

SC/22/19 Member of Owston 
Ferry Parish Council 

Member of Owston Ferry 
Parish Council 

15 November 2022          - Resolved 
informally 

SC/22/20 Member of Goxhill 
Parish Council 

Member of Goxhill Parish 
Council 

19 December 2022 7 March 2023 Recommendation 
of mediation 

SC/23/01 Member of Goxhill 
Parish Council 

Member of Goxhill Parish 
Council 

24 January 2023          - Resolved 
informally 

SC/23/02 Member of the public Member of North 
Lincolnshire Council 

8 February 2023 7 March 2023 None 

SC/23/03 Member of North 
Lincolnshire Council 

Member of North 
Lincolnshire Council 

14 February 2023 29 June 2023 None 

SC/23/04 Member of the public Six members of Burringham 
Parish Council 

7 March 2023 23 April 2023 None 

SC/23/05 Member of North 
Lincolnshire Council 

Member of North 
Lincolnshire Council 

7 March 2023 29 June 2023 None 

SC/23/06 Member of the public Two Members of Owston 
Ferry Parish Council 

10 March 2023 6 September 2023 None 

SC/23/07 Member of Owston 
Ferry Parish Council 

Member of Owston Ferry 
Parish Council 

10 March 2023         - Not accepted 

SC/23/08 Member of the public Member of Burringham 
Parish Council 

22 March 2023 23 April 2023 None 

SC/23/09 Member of the public Member of Cadney cum 
Howsham Parish Council 

3 April 2023 29 June 2023 None 

SC/23/10 Member of Owston 
Ferry Parish Council 

Member of Owston Ferry 
Parish Council 

10 May 2023 29 June 2023 Investigation 
ongoing 

SC/23/11 Member of the public Member of Owston Ferry 
Parish Council 

10 May 2023 6 September 2023 Investigation 
ongoing 

SC/23/12 Member of Owston 
Ferry Parish Council 

Member of Owston Ferry 
Parish Council 

19 May 2023 29 June 2023 Investigation 
ongoing 

SC/23/13 Member of Winterton 
Town Council 

Member of Winterton Town 
Council 

5 June 2023 29 June 2023 None 

P
age 16



Democratic Services/Support Services/Regulatory/Committees/Standards/Complaints Schedule (2022-23) 
 
 

SC/23/14 Officer of Winterton 
Town Council 

Member of Winterton Town 
Council 

5 June 2023 29 June 2023 Investigation 
halted due to 
resignation 

SC/23/15 Member of the public Member of Ashby Parklands 
Parish Council 

5 June 2023 6 September 2023 None 

SC/23/16 Member of the public Member of North 
Lincolnshire Council 

8 June 2023 6 September 2023 None 

SC/23/17 Member of Goxhill 
Parish Council 

Member of Goxhill Parish 
Council 

12 June 2023 6 September 2023 Recommendation 
of mediation 

SC/23/18 Member of Epworth 
Town Council 

Member of Epworth Town 
Council 

20 July 2023 6 September 2023 Investigation 
ongoing 

SC/23/19 Member of Epworth 
Town Council 

Member of Epworth Town 
Council 

21 July 2023 6 September 2023 Withdrawn 

SC/23/20 Member of the public Member of Epworth Town 
Council 

25 July 2023 6 September 2023 Investigation 
ongoing 

SC/23/21 Member of Epworth 
Town Council 

Member of Epworth Town 
Council 

27 July 2023 6 September 2023 None 

SC/23/22 Member of Epworth 
Town Council 

Member of Epworth Town 
Council 

1 August 2023 6 September 2023 Investigation 
ongoing 

SC/23/23 Member of Epworth 
Town Council 

Member of Epworth Town 
Council 

16 August 2023 9 November 2023 Investigation 
ongoing 

SC/23/24 Member of North 
Lincolnshire Council 

Three Members of North 
Lincolnshire Council 

23 August 2023 9 November 2023 None 

SC/23/25 Member of Epworth 
Town Council 

Member of Epworth Town 
Council 

7 September 2023 9 November 2023 Investigation 
ongoing 

SC/23/26 Member of Epworth 
Town Council 

Member of Epworth Town 
Council 

7 September 2023 -  Not accepted 

SC/23/27 Officer of North 
Lincolnshire Council 

Member of North 
Lincolnshire Council 

26 September 2023 9 November 2023 Resolved 
informally 

SC/23/28 Member of the public Member of Roxby cum Risby 
Parish Council 

27 September 2023 9 November 2023 None 

SC/23/29 Member of Epworth 
Town Council 

Member of Epworth Town 
Council 

29 September 2023 18 October 2023 None 

SC/23/30 Member of Kirton in Member of Kirton in Lindsey 10 October 2023 9 November 2023 None 

P
age 17



Democratic Services/Support Services/Regulatory/Committees/Standards/Complaints Schedule (2022-23) 
 
 

Lindsey Town Council Town Council 
SC/23/31 Member of Kirton in 

Lindsey Town Council 
Member of Kirton in Lindsey 
Town Council 

10 October 2023 9 November 2023 None 

SC/23/32 Member of the public Five members of Bottesford 
Town Council and one 
Member of North 
Lincolnshire Council 

14 November 2023 18 January 2024 None 

SC/23/33 Member of the public Member of Barrow upon 
Humber Parish Council 

17 November 2023 18 January 2024 Investigation 
ongoing 

SC/23/34 Member of the public Member of Worlaby Parish 
Council 

22 November 2023 30 November 2024 None 

SC/24/01 Member of the public Member of Alkborough & 
Walcot Parish Council 

15 January 2024 8 February 2024 None 

SC/24/02 Member of the public Member of Epworth Town 
Council 

18 January 2024 2 February 2024 None 

SC/24/03 Member of Epworth 
Town Council 

Member of Epworth Town 
Council 

18 January 2024   

SC/24/04 Member of the public Two members of New 
Holland Parish Council 

9 February 2024 29 February 2024 None 

SC/24/05 Member of Epworth 
Town Council 

Member of Epworth Town 
Council 

20 February 2024   

SC/24/06 Member of the public Five members of Barnetby 
Parish Council 

22 February 2024   

SC/24/07 Member of the public Member of East Halton 
Parish Council 

18 March 2024   

 

P
age 18


	Agenda
	3 To take the minutes of the meeting of the Standards Committee held on 9 November 2023 as a correct record and authorise the chairman to sign.
	Minutes

	5 Media Relation and Publicity Management - discussions with the Head of Corporate Marketing
	6 Complaints Schedule - Update.

